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Fire Control Station “U” Complex

The original fire control station built atop Puu-o-Hulu-Kai in 1923 was designated Station “U.”
All subsequent FC stations atop the ridge carried the same station designator, along with assigned
reference numbers.

The first FC station served Battery Williston’s pair of 16-inch guns at Ft. Weaver, west of the Pearl
Harbor channel. The single-story 8 by 12-foot concrete observation station at the peak 860-foot eleva-
tion was dug into the surrounding rock. The structure included a slab roof and overhanging eaves on
the front (west) and sidewalls. The steel vertical shutters, outside the three narrow observation slits on
the front and sidewalls, opened upward. The observation room was entered via a manhole on the roof.
The station, with a single concrete pier for an M1907 DPF observing instrument, was transferred to
the coast artillery on April 7, 1924.

The next two FC stations built atop Puu-o-Hulu were identical 8 by 12-foot single-story box-
shaped reinforced-concrete observation stations completed in the late 1920s, with narrow view slits on
the front and side walls protected by exterior steel drop shutters. Both stations were entered through
steel doors in their rear walls. One station served Battery Closson (two 12-inch long-range guns, Ft.
Kamehameha), while the other served the railway mortar positions on the Leeward Coast. Early in
World War 11, the station assigned to the newly casemated Battery Closson was reassigned as a base
end station for the Browns Camp 8-inch railway battery. The station assigned to the railway mortar
positions was reassigned to serve Battery Salt Lake (two 8-inch NT), 1/2 mile from the south rim of
Aliamanu Crater.(40)

The fourth FC station was built in 1934 to service the two 16-inch guns of Battery Hatch at Fort
Barrette, some 5-3/4 miles west of Pearl Harbor. The single-story reinforced-concrete double station, 16
feet wide by 15 feet deep and equipped with two DPF instruments, was located just below the original
1923 station. This station was reassigned in 1945 to serve the almost completed Battery Arizona (one
14-inch N'T) at Kahe Point.(41) Its protected entryway was in the right rear wall.

The fifth FC station built on the crest was a single-story double station equipped with two DPF
instruments, completed by December 3, 1940, with eaves and slit window openings covered by out-
side steel drop shutters. Between the pair of the 1920s FC stations, it included a room at the rear for
a plotting board and FC switchboard. This Hulu Gun Group command post provided tactical control
of the 8-inch railway guns at Browns Camp and their alternate firing position at Waianae, Battery
Awanui’s four 155 mm guns at Browns Camp, the 5-inch and 155 mm guns at Nanakuli, and the 155
mm guns at Kahe Point. The CP was manned early in World War II by a detachment from HQ and
HQ Battery, 1 Bn, 41 CA.(42)

Gun Group on July 27, 1944, and the Hulu Group was inactivated by GO No. 4, HD of Honolulu
and Pear] Harbor, on August 30, 1944.(43)
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Cableway steel support tower. The Lualualei Naval Reservation is in the background. Guidry
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Generator building on reverse slbpe of Puu-o-Hulu. Guidry

Initial access to the FC stations was via a steep winding trail on the reverse slope. Later an aerial
cableway powered by a 6-cylinder GMC gasoline donkey engine was built over a cable right-of-way
on the reverse slope obtained in April 1931, to haul material up the steep slope more rapidly.(44)
cableway’s engine and cable reel were at the end of the line between the northern-most FC station and

the Hulu Group CP.

Demolished building atop Puu-o-Hulu, believed to be mess hall and kitchen. Guidry
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.30 cal. MG pipe-mount between cable tram landing and Hulu Group CP. Guidry

Several temporary buildings on the reverse slope below the crest that supported the men manning
the FC stations included two wooden 40-man bunkhouses, a kitchen, storeroom, and a latrine that
were completed just prior to December 1940. Electrical power was supplied by a 5 kW 110 V 60-cycle

just below the ridgeline NN'W of the northern-most FC station. Several short trails connected the new
buildings with the main trail.(45)

Perimeter defense of the FC station complex included two MG dugouts equipped with galvanized-
pipe mounts, probably for .30-caliber MGs. One position was on the ridge between the cable tram
landing and the Hulu Group CP, close to the trail; the second position was several feet east of the
highest FC station.

Antiaircraft Intelligence Service Station No. 8 was established sometime before September 18, 1941,
at one of the two highest FC stations.

Communication Lines

Wire communication lines were part of the Signal Corps’ island-wide “Command and Fire Control
Cable System.” A 50-pair subterranean branch cable, No. 115, connected to the POHMR, including
the FC complex, from the Maili FC Switchboard Hut “U” adjacent to POHMR’s northwest corner. A
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100-pair subterranean cable, No. 113, ran from the Ewa Plain up the west coast to Hut “U.”(46) The
cable network continued up the coast to Waianae, connecting with a hut at Kaena Point.
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Maili FCSB Room/Cable Hut “U.” Author

Possible transformer building on Maili MR. Author

The Maili Military Reservation (MMR) consisted of FC Switchboard/Hut “U,” completed in 1929
to service a 12-inch railway mortar-battery firing position at a nearby railroad siding.(47) In World
War II, a MG position was established atop the mound adjoining the rear (south) wall of the cable
hut. A .30-caliber MG was probably mounted on the galvanized pipe found embedded in the ground.

A possible transformer or
generator building some 100 feet north of Cable Hut “U” had thick walls and a large open window on
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the east wall, and a single doorway on the west wall at the southwest corner. An electrical distribution
box was affixed to the upper south wall of the structure.

Searchlight Position

Targets were illuminated by 60-inch portable Seacoast Searchlights Nos. 57 and 58 atop concrete
emplacements on Puu-o-Hulu’s northwest slopes, just about the 100-foot elevation. HQ Battery, 41*
CA, manned the searchlights until relieved by the newly activated Battery G, 15" CA, who manned the
searchlights until the battery was inactivated in August 1944. The personnel, however, were reassigned to
the 856" CA (SL) Battery (Separate), which continued to man the searchlights until the end of the war.
On December 31, 1945, the 856™ CA Battery was inactivated per G.O. No. 15, 2274* HSAC.(48)

Concluding Remarks

The Puu-o-Hulu Military Reservation consisted of approximately 69.48 acres.(49) The State of Ha-
waii owns the land upon which all extant structures are located, including the casemated gun emplace-
ments, tunnels, fire control stations, and Cable Hut “U.” The largest parcel now encompasses 97.014
acres, Tax Map Key: 87006000, and also a 5.637-acre parcel (Tax Map Key: 87006008). The former
MMR included 19,840 square feet recorded under Tax Map Key 87006005. The City and County of
Honolulu leases 1.377 acres, Tax Map Key: 87006032, of the former military reservation from the State
of Hawaii as a construction equipment base yard for the Board of Water Supply.

Entry to the former POHMR is restricted due to the increased level of security since September
11, 2001. The City and County of Honolulu’s Civil Defense Agency leases and occupies Battery Hulu’s
two casemates, and uses portions of the tunnel complex to store equipment. The extant structures of
the POHMR remain in fair to good condition, with the tunnel complex left unfinished.
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